
 
APRIL 19, 2021 

 
 

PLEASE TAKE NOTE: 
 
ON APRIL 19, 2021, THE PLANNING BOARD OF THE BOROUGH OF MIDLAND 
PARK WILL HOLD THEIR REGULARLY SCHEDULED MEETING  BY TELE-
CONFERENCING THE MEETING VIA GO-TO-MEETING WHICH IS ACCESSIBLE TO 
THE PUBLIC BY CALLING 1 877 309 2073 ACCESS CODE 467-062-293 OR JOIN 
https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/467062293.  THE MEETING WILL BEGIN AT 7:30 
PM. 
  
READING OF THE OPEN PUBLIC MEETINGS ACT 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
ROLL CALL 
 
Approval of minutes- March 15, 2021 
  
ZONING CERTIFICATES: 
 
Great White Mechanical, LLC – 23 Birch St – BL 26.01 LT 32 – HVAC company 
 

Certificates approved by the Zoning Officer or Zoning Board: 
 

Godwin Park, LLC – 80 Godwin Ave – BL 6 LT 17.02 – Temporary storage 
JP’s Pizza & Gourmet Food – 648 Godwin Ave – BL 45 LT 7 – Take-out restaurant 
Garden State Garage and Siding – 26 Goffle Rd – BL 20.03 LT 6 – Office space 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 
Mature Environments Inc/Mill Gardens – 36 Faner Rd – BL 27 LT 5 – Site plan waiver 
  
COMMUNICATIONS: 
 
Zoning Ordinance Change – Ordinance #07-21 for planning board review and 
comments. 
 

ADJOURNMENT 

https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/789576909


DRAFT
BOROUGH OF MIDLAND PARK – PLANNING BOARD MINUTES 

MARCH 15, 2021 

PLEASE TAKE NOTE: 
ON MONDAY, MARCH 15, 2021 THE PLANNING BOARD OF THE BOROUGH OF MIDLAND PARK HELD 
A TELE-CONFERENCED MEETING VIA A GO TO MEETING WHICH WAS ACCESSIBLE TO THE 
PUBLIC BY CALLING 1-866-899-4679. THE MEETING BEGAN AT 7:30 P.M. 

SUNSHINE LAW STATEMENT: This meeting is being held in accordance with the Sunshine Law, notice 
having been published according to law with a copy on file in the Borough Clerk’s Office and a copy posted 
on the bulletin board in the Municipal Building. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
ROLL CALL: 
Kent Rigg, Chairman present Ms. Stephanie Pantale present 
Councilman Ken Kruis present Ms. Esther Vierheilig present 
Mayor Harry Shortway, Jr. excused Alt. #1 Mr. Robert Mulder present 
Mr. Michael Rau present Alt. #2 Ms. Isabel Duffy present 
Mr. David Wostbrock, Vice-Chair present 

D. Siss, Board Attorney and E. Boe, Board Engineer, were present on behalf of the Board.

Minutes of 1/25/21 – approved with a spelling correction 

ZONING CERTIFICATES: 

B.L. Automotive- 282 Greenwood Ave- BL 50 LT 14- Barry Luyster, owner – Automotive repair, some cutting
and welding. Board reminded applicant that all work needs to be done inside the building. Motion to approve
zoning certificate by Mr. Wostbrock, seconded by Councilman Kruis; all voted in favor.

RESOLUTIONS: 

Emergency Remote Meeting Protocols– Atty. Siss clarified that applicants are required to be on video and 
that Board members are recommended to be on video, not just audio/phone. Motion to approve resolution 
by Ms. Pantale, seconded by Mr. Wostbrock; all voted in favor. 

COMMUNICATIONS: 

Cornerstone Diversified Properties LLC – BL 25 LT 12 – motion to approve return of unused escrow by Ms. 
Vierheilig, seconded by Ms. Pantale; all voted in favor. 

Contracts & Resolutions for 2021 – Atty. Siss for Board Attorney and LAN Assoc. for Board Engineer. Motion 
to approve contracts and resolutions by Mr. Wostbrock, seconded by Councilman Kruis; all voted in favor.  

LAN letter – John Panariello – 80 West St. – BL 33 LT 2 – revised site plan has met relevant conditions of 
the Planning Board resolution.  

First Hartford/CVS – 80 Godwin Ave – BL 6 LT 17.02 – Erik Boe, Board Engineer, reviewed minor deviation 
from approved site plan regarding trees near the driveway. Propose keeping existing trees, will still be 
required to replace if one dies. Mr. Boe to confirm line of sight, specifically regarding tree closest to street. 
Board has no objections to change. Also discussed future construction next to CVS location, they will have 
to provide appropriate safety measures for vehicles/pedestrians prior to a TCO being issued for CVS.  

Meeting adjourned – 7:50 PM 
Jessica Harmon 









































 

P:\200-AE\2400-2499\2428\2428.256\Admin\Letters\2428256LHarmon040621.docx 

 
 
 
 
 
 
  April 6, 2021 
 
Sent Via Email: jharmon@midlandparknj.org 
 
Borough of Midland Park 
Planning Board 
280 Godwin Ave 
Midland Park, NJ 07432 
 
Attn:  Ms. Jessica Harmon, Secretary 
 
  Subject: Midland Park Planning Board/ 
   Mature Environments Inc. 
   DBA Mill Gardens at Midland Park  
   Proposed Landscaping Improvements  
   Anita Laganella Memorial Park 
   Site Plan Waiver 
   36 Fanner Road 
   Block 27, Lot 5.01 
   LAN Job #2.2428.256 
 
Dear Ms. Harmon: 
 
LAN Associates, Engineering, Planning, Architecture, Surveying, Inc. (LAN) is in receipt of the following 
documents, which form the basis of our initial review: 
 

1. Application for Development 
 

2. Site drawings prepared by Alexander J. Lapatka, PE consisting of three sheets, dated 11/17/20 
 
It is our understanding from our initial review of the plans and applications that the applicant is seeking a 
site plan waiver for a number of landscaping improvements in their existing recreational/landscape area on 
the west side of the site.  These improvements includes replacement of the existing pedestrian walkways, 
adding benches, picnic tables, two small gazebo/pavilions, a paver patio, & two garden areas.  The existing 
paved fire lane is proposed to be removed and replaced with “reinforced turf”.  The existing dumpster area 
is proposed to be expanded to accommodate one additional dumpster, and the existing dumpster enclosure 
fencing is proposed to be replaced with new board-on-board fencing.  New landscaping is proposed to 
supplement the existing landscaping in this area of the site.  A new shed is proposed to replace an existing 
shed that is to be removed. 
 
Review Comments: 
 

1. The applicant is seeking approval under the site plan waiver ordinance Section 32-2 of the Land 
Use Ordinance.  Specifically, Ordinance 32-2.1d indicates “The Planning Board may waive site 
plan approval requirements if (i) the construction or alteration or change of use does not affect 
existing traffic circulation, drainage, relationship of buildings to each other or to the parking area, 
landscaping, buffering, lighting, parking requirements and other considerations of site plan review 
or if any such changes are deemed to be de minimis, and (ii) there is an accurate, approved site 
plan or existing conditions plan or as-built drawings on file. In order to request such a waiver, the 
applicant must submit an application for development and pay the application fee and appropriate 
escrows. The applicant shall include with such application such plans and other documentation as 



LAN ASSOCIATES                 2 

P:\200-AE\2400-2499\2428\2428.256\Admin\Letters\2428256LHarmon040621.docx 

the Planning Board may require to make its determination. Any waiver that is granted may be on 
the condition that the applicant provide additional information or as-built drawings and comply with 
any requirements of the Planning Board Engineer. Notwithstanding that a waiver may be granted, 
the provisions of subsection 34-21.3 of the Zoning Ordinance shall remain applicable. No public 
notice shall be required for the waiver application. 
 

2. LAN has reviewed the submitted plans as well as the approved site plan set on file with the 
Borough, which was last revised 8/9/98.  The submitted site plans were based upon survey data 
from 8/16/01, last revised 11/08/16.  We find that the as-built survey demonstrates general 
conformance with the approved site plans.  We’re satisfied that this fulfills the condition that there 
is an accurate, approved site plan on file.  The plans for the recently approved backup generator 
are also on file with the Borough. 
 

3. The proposed walkways and recreational areas are in the portion of the existing site that is currently 
used for similar purposes.  The proposed landscaping is an expansion/enhancement of the existing 
landscaping in the area. 
 

4. The proposed expansion of the dumpster area is immediately adjacent to the existing dumpster 
areas & closer to the building (further from the adjacent neighbors.) 
 

5. It appears as if the increase in impervious area that will result from the wider walkways and new 
patio areas will be offset by the removal of some of the existing pathways and the replacement of 
the fire lane with “grasspave” stabilized grass.  The applicant should provide testimony as to the 
areas of impervious area that are proposed to be removed vs. the proposed new impervious areas. 
 

6. The applicant should be aware that the “grasspave” fire lane will need to be maintained in such a 
way that it remains accessible by emergency personnel.  The applicant should confer with the fire 
department to clarify their requirements.  This will include plowing in the winter, which will likely 
require specialized equipment to avoid damaging the grasspave system. 
 

7. The applicant should provide testimony that all of the accessory structures will not exceed 16’ in 
height in accordance with ordinance section 34-13.1.1. 
 

8. The applicant should provide testimony that the aggregate area of all existing and proposed 
accessory structures does not exceed 30% of the area of the side or rear yard in which said 
accessory buildings are located in accordance with ordinance section 34-13.1.4. 
 

9. All of the proposed accessory structures comply with the required 5’ setbacks to lot lines in 
accordance with ordinance section 34-13.1.2. 
 

10. All of the proposed accessory structures appear to comply with the requirements of ordinance 
section 34-13.1.6, 10’ offset from principal dwelling, however no dimension is shown from the 
proposed shed to the principal structure.  The applicant should provide testimony confirming that 
the shed is at least 10’ from the principal building. 
 

11. The applicant proposes “low-level walkway lighting” along the proposed walkways and patio areas.  
This proposed “low-level” lighting could be considered a de-minimis improvement if the applicant 
can provide adequate testimony that the proposed lighting is landscape-type lighting that will meet 
all of the ordinance requirements for glare and light-spillage.  These lights will be required to comply 
with the requirements of ordinance section 32-6.5 and 34-15.5.  (The more stringent light spillage 
requirement should be adhered to.)  The applicant should provide testimony regarding how the 
lighting was designed so as to “minimize glare and reflection on adjacent properties” as required 
by ordinance section 32-6.1(e).  The board should consider maintaining jurisdiction over the 
proposed lighting for a period of time after construction so that any lighting-related issues can be 
properly addressed to the satisfaction of the board. 

 
 



LAN ASSOCIATES                 3 

P:\200-AE\2400-2499\2428\2428.256\Admin\Letters\2428256LHarmon040621.docx 

 
Based upon our review of the provided information, it is our opinion that the application can be reviewed 
under the Site Plan Waiver Ordinance. 

 
  Respectfully submitted, 
 

LAN Associates, Engineering, Planning, 
Architecture, Surveying, Inc. (LAN) 

     
  Erik E. Boe, PE 
 
EB:eb/P:\200-AE\2400-2499\2428\2428.256\Admin\Letters\2428256LHarmon040621.docx  
cc: File #2.2428.256 
 Darryl Siss (via email: dsiss@trslawfirm.com) 
 Peter A. Jeffer (via email: petelaw@peterajeffer.com) 



BOROUGH OF MIDLAND PARK 

ORDINANCE #07-21 

AN ORDINANCE BY THE BOROUGH OF MIDLAND PARK IN THE COUNTY OF 

BERGEN, NEW JERSEY PROHIBITING THE OPERATION OF ANY CLASS OF 

CANNABIS BUSINESSES WITHIN ITS GEOGRAPHICAL BOUNDARIES AND 

AMENDING SECTION 34-1.4, PROHIBITED USES IN ALL ZONES, OF THE 

BOROUGH CODE 

WHEREAS, in 2020 New Jersey voters approved Public Question No. 1, which amended 

the New Jersey Constitution to allow for the legalization of a controlled form of marijuana called 

“cannabis” for adults at least 21 years of age; and 

 WHEREAS, on February 22, 2021, Governor Murphy signed into law P.L. 2021, c. 16, 

known as the “New Jersey Cannabis Regulatory, Enforcement Assistance, and Marketplace 

Modernization Act” (the “Act”), which legalizes the recreational use of marijuana by adults 21 

years of age or older, and establishes a comprehensive regulatory and licensing scheme for 

commercial recreational (adult use) cannabis operations, use and possession; and 

 WHEREAS, the Act establishes six marketplace classes of licensed businesses, including: 

• Class 1 Cannabis Cultivator license, for facilities involved in growing and 

cultivating cannabis; 

 

• Class 2 Cannabis Manufacturer license, for facilities involved in the manufacturing, 

preparation, and packaging of cannabis items; 

 

• Class 3 Cannabis Wholesaler license, for facilities involved in obtaining and selling 

cannabis items for later resale by other licensees; 

 

• Class 4 Cannabis Distributer license, for businesses involved in transporting 

cannabis plants in bulk from on licensed cultivator to another licensed cultivator, 

or cannabis items in bulk from any type of licensed cannabis business to another; 

 

• Class 5 Cannabis Retailer license for locations at which cannabis items and related 

supplies are sold to consumers; and 

 

• Class 6 Cannabis Delivery license, for businesses providing courier services for 

consumer purchases that are fulfilled by a licensed cannabis retailer in order to 

make deliveries of the purchases items to a consumer, and which service would 

include the ability of a consumer to make a purchase directly through the cannabis 

delivery service which would be presented by the delivery service for fulfillment 

by a retailer and then delivered to a consumer.  

 WHEREAS, Section 31a of the Act authorizes municipalities by Ordinance to adopt 

regulations governing the number of cannabis establishments (defined in Section 3 of the Act as 

“a cannabis cultivator, a cannabis manufacturer, a cannabis wholesaler, or a cannabis retailer”), 



2 
 

cannabis distributors or cannabis delivery services allowed to operate within their boundaries, as 

well as the location manner and times operation of such establishments, distributors or delivery 

services, and establishing civil penalties for the violation of any such regulations; and 

WHEREAS, Section 31b of the Act authorizes municipalities by Ordinance to prohibit the 

operation of any one or more classes of cannabis establishments, distributors, or delivery services 

anywhere in the municipality; and 

WHEREAS,  Section 31b of the Act also stipulates, however, that any municipal 

regulation or prohibition must be adopted within 180 days of the effective date of the Act (i.e., by 

August 22, 2021); and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 31b of the Act, the failure to do so shall mean that for a 

period of five years thereafter, the growing, cultivating, manufacturing, selling and reselling of 

cannabis and cannabis items shall be permitted uses in all industrial zones, and the retail selling of 

cannabis items to consumers shall be a conditional use in all commercial and retail zones; and 

WHEREAS, at the conclusion of the initial and any subsequent five-year period following 

a failure to enact local regulations or prohibitions, the municipality shall again have 180 days to 

adopt an ordinance regulating or prohibiting cannabis businesses, but any such Ordinance would 

be prospective only and would not apply to any cannabis business already operating within the 

municipality; and 

  

WHEREAS, the Mayor and Council of the Borough of Midland Park has determined that, 

due to present uncertainties regarding the potential future impacts that allowing one or more 

classes of cannabis business might have on New Jersey municipalities in general, and on the 

Borough of Midland Park in particular, it is at this time necessary and appropriate, and in the best 

interest of the health, safety and welfare of the Borough’s residents and members of the public 

who visit, travel, or conduct business in the Borough of Midland Park, to amend the Borough of 

Midland Park’s zoning regulations to prohibit all manner of marijuana-related land use and 

development within the geographic boundaries of the Borough of Midland Park; and 

 

WHEREAS, officials from two prominent non-profit organizations that have been 

established for the purpose of advising New Jersey municipalities on legal matters such as have 

been presented by the Act (those organizations being the New Jersey State League of 

Municipalities and the New Jersey Institute of Local Government Attorneys) have strongly urged 

that, due to the complexity and novelty of the Act; the many areas of municipal law that are or 

may be implicated in decisions as to whether or to what extent cannabis or medical cannabis should 

be permitted for land use purposes or otherwise regulated in any particular municipality; and the 

relatively short duration in which the Act would allow such decisions to be made before imposing 

an automatic authorization of such uses in specified zoning districts subject to unspecified 

conditions, the most prudent course of action for all municipalities, whether or not generally in 

favor of cannabis or medical cannabis land development and uses, would be to prohibit all such 

uses within the Act’s 180-day period in order to ensure sufficient time to carefully review all 

aspects of the Act and its impacts; 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the Mayor and Council of the Borough of 

Midland Park, in the County of Bergen, State of New Jersey, as follows: 



3 
 

1. Pursuant to Section 31b of the New Jersey Cannabis Regulatory, Enforcement 

Assistance, and Marketplace Modernization Act (P.L. 2021, c. 16), all cannabis establishments, 

cannabis distributors or cannabis delivery services are hereby prohibited from operating anywhere 

in the Borough of Midland Park, except for the delivery of cannabis items and related supplies by 

a delivery service.   

 

2. Chpater 34 of the Borough Code, Zoning, Section 34-1, General Provisions, 

Subsection 34-4.1, Prohibited Uses In All Zones, is hereby amended to read as follows:  “In every 

Zoning District referred to in Section 34-2 of this Chapter, no land or building shall be used or 

allowed to be used for any class of cannabis establishment, cannabis distributor or retailer, or 

cannabis delivery service as said terms are defined in Section 3 of P.L. 2021, c. 16, but not the 

delivery of cannabis items and related supplies by a delivery service.” 

 

 3. Any person found guilty of violating the provisions of this Ordinance shall be 

subject to such fines and penalties as set forth in Section 1-5 of the Borough Code. 

4. Any article, section, paragraph, subsection, clause, or other provision of the 

Midland Park Borough Code inconsistent with the provisions of this Ordinance is hereby repealed 

to the extent of such inconsistency. 

 

5. If any section, paragraph, subsection, clause, or provision of this ordinance shall be 

adjudged by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, such adjudication shall apply only to 

the section, paragraph, subsection, clause, or provision so adjudged, and the remainder of this 

Ordinance shall be deemed valid and effective. 

 

6. This Ordinance shall take effect upon its passage and publication and filing with 

the  Bergen County Planning Board, and as otherwise provided for by law.  

 

________________________________  ___________________________________ 

Wendy Martin, Borough Clerk                               Harry Shortway Jr., Mayor 

Introduction: April 8, 2021 

Final Adoption:  

 

Member 

 

Motion 

 

Second 

 

    Aye 

 

     Nay 

 

Abstain 

 

Absent 

 

Damiano 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Kruis 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Sansone  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DeLuca  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Peet 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Iannone  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



4 
 

 

 

 BOROUGH OF MIDLAND PARK 

 280 GODWIN AVENUE 

 MIDLAND PARK, NJ 07432 

 

 ORDINANCE #07-21 

 

AN ORDINANCE BY THE BOROUGH OF MIDLAND PARK IN THE COUNTY OF 

BERGEN, NEW JERSEY PROHIBITING THE OPERATION OF ANY CLASS OF 

CANNABIS BUSINESSES WITHIN ITS GEOGRAPHICAL BOUNDARIES AND 

AMENDING SECTION 34-1.4, PROHIBITED USES IN ALL ZONES, OF THE 

BOROUGH CODE 

 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN, that the proposed Ordinance was introduced and passed on the 

first reading at a regular meeting of the Borough Council of the Borough of Midland Park, Bergen 

County, New Jersey, held on April 8, 2021, and that said Ordinance will be taken up for further 

consideration and final passage at the Regular meeting of the Borough Council on May 13, 2021 

at 8:00 P.M., or as soon thereafter will be given the opportunity to be heard concerning the same. 

Meetings are currently being held electronically in lieu of in-person regular Public Meeting at 

Midland Park Borough Hall, Midland Park, New Jersey due to the current situation involving the 

COVID-19 Virus and directives of State and County Governments 

 

TAKE FURTHER NOTICE, that the Borough Clerk has posted a copy of said Ordinance on the 

bulletin board in Midland Park Borough Hall and will make copies of the Ordinance available to 

members of the general public who request the same. 

 

Wendy Martin, R.M.C.  

Borough Clerk 

 

 

Proof of Publication is required 

1 Reprint requested 

 

For the April 14, 2021 issue of The Bergen Record 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



5 
 

 

 

 

 

  

BOROUGH OF MIDLAND PARK 

280 GODWIN AVENUE 

MIDLAND PARK, NJ 07432 

 

ORDINANCE #07-21 

 

AN ORDINANCE BY THE BOROUGH OF MIDLAND PARK IN THE COUNTY OF 

BERGEN, NEW JERSEY PROHIBITING THE OPERATION OF ANY CLASS OF 

CANNABIS BUSINESSES WITHIN ITS GEOGRAPHICAL BOUNDARIES AND 

AMENDING SECTION 34-1.4, PROHIBITED USES IN ALL ZONES, OF THE 

BOROUGH CODE 

 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN, that the foregoing Ordinance was introduced at a regular meeting 

of the Borough Council of the Borough of Midland Park, Bergen County, held on April 8, 2021, 

and was passed on final reading and approved at a Regular meeting of the said Borough Council, 

held on May 13, 2021. Meetings are currently being held electronically in lieu of in-person regular 

Public Meeting at Midland Park Borough Hall, Midland Park, New Jersey due to the current 

situation involving the COVID-19 Virus and directives of State and County Governments. 

 

        Lorenzo Damiano 

        Kenneth Kruis 

Robert Sansone 

Lorraine DeLuca 

Nancy Peet  

Jerry Iannone    

        

 

Proof of Publication Required 

1 Reprint Requested 

 

For the May 19, 2021 issue of The Bergen Record  
 

      

 
 


	PBA-21-4
	PBM - 21-3 Draft
	Zoning Cert - 23 Birch Street
	Zoning Cert - 80 Godwin Avenue
	Zoning Cert - 648 Godwin Avenue
	Zoning Cert - 26 Goffle Road
	36 Faner Mill Gardens Site Plan Waiver Application 2.23.21
	36 Faner Mill Gardens Site Plan Sheet 1-3
	36 Faner Mill Gardens Sit Plan Sheet 2-3 Landscape Plan
	36 Faner Mill Gardens Sheet 3-3 Plant List Details
	36 Faner Mill Gardens Coverage Exhibit
	07-21 Marijuana-Cannabis Prohibition



